
 

 

www.eden.gov.uk         

Rose Rouse 
Chief Executive 

Date: 12 February 2020 
 
 
 
 

Town Hall, Penrith, Cumbria CA11 7QF 

Tel: 01768 817817 

Email: cttee.admin@eden.gov.uk 

 
 
Dear Sir/Madam 
 

Accounts and Governance Committee Agenda - 20 February 2020 
 

Notice is hereby given that a meeting of the Accounts and Governance Committee will be 
held at 6.45 pm on Thursday, 20 February 2020 at the Council Chamber, Town Hall, 
Penrith. 
 

1   Apologies for Absence   
 

2   Minutes of Previous Meeting   
 

To sign the public minutes  
1. AGc/28/11/19 to AGc/38/11/19 of the meeting of this Committee held on 28 

November; and 
2. AGc/39/12/19 to AGc/42/12/19 of the extraordinary meeting of this Committee 

held on 18 December 2019; and 
as a correct record of those proceedings (copies previously circulated). 
 

3   Declarations of Interest   
 

To receive declarations of the existence and nature of any private interests, 
both disclosable pecuniary and any other registrable interests, in any matter 
to be considered or being considered. 

 

4   External Audit Reports  (Pages 5 - 18) 
 

To consider report F9/20 from the Director of Finance which is attached and which 
sets out one report from the Council’s External Auditor, Grant Thornton. 
 
RECOMMENDATION that the report be noted.  
 

5   Internal Audit: Completed Reports and Progress against Annual Plan  
(Pages 19 - 26) 
 

To consider report F11/20 from the Director of Corporate Services which is attached 
and which seeks to advise Members of findings and recommendations of reports 
that have recently been completed by the Council’s Internal Audit Service and 
progress against the agreed Annual Plan for 2019/20. 
 



 

www.eden.gov.uk 2 

RECOMMENDATION that the contents of the report be noted.  
 

6   Internal Audit Annual Plan 2020-2021  (Pages 27 - 32) 
 

To consider report F10/20 from the Director of Finance which is attached and which 
seeks approval for the Council’s Internal Audit Annual Plan for 2020-2021.  Under 
the Council’s Constitution, approval of the Audit Plan rests with this Committee. 
 
RECOMMENDATION that the Audit Plan for 2020/21, attached at Appendix A, is 
agreed.  
 

7   Any Other Items Which the Chairman Decides are Urgent   
 

8   Date of Next Scheduled Meeting   
 

The next scheduled meeting of this Committee was confirmed as 2 April 2020.  
 

 
Yours faithfully 

 
R Rouse 
Chief Executive 
 
Democratic Services Contact: Vivien Little 
 
 
Encs 
 
For Attention 
All members of the Council 
 
Chairman – Councillor M Eyles (Liberal Democrat Group) 
Vice Chairman – Councillor D Ryland (Independent Group) 
 
Councillors 

K Beaty, Conservative Group 
A Connell, Liberal Democrat Group 
M Hanley, Labour Group 
S Lancaster, Independent Group 
 

J C Lynch, Conservative Group 
N McCall, Liberal Democrat Group 
R Orchard, Conservative Group 
 

 
Standing Deputies 

P G Baker, Liberal Democrat Group 
M Clark, Independent Group 
L Harker, Liberal Democrat Group 
G Nicolson OBE, Conservative Group 
 

W Patterson, Independent Group 
A Ross, Green Group 
D Wicks, Conservative Group 
 

Please Note:  



 

www.eden.gov.uk 3 

1. Access to the internet in the Council Chamber and Committee room is 
available via the guest wi-fi – no password is required 

2. Under the Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 this 
meeting has been advertised as a public meeting (unless stated otherwise) 
and as such could be filmed or recorded by the media or members of the 
public 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 

Report No: F9/20 

Eden District Council 

Accounts and Governance Committee 

20 February 2020 

External Audit Reports 

Portfolio: None 

Report from: Director of Finance 

Wards: All Wards 

OPEN PUBLIC ITEM 

1 Purpose 

1.1 To set out one report from the Council’s External Auditor, Grant Thornton. 

2 Recommendation 

 That the report be noted. 

3 Report Details 

3.1 The External Auditor has issued one report since the last meeting.  A copy of the Audit 
Progress Report is attached at Appendix A. 

4 Policy Framework 

4.1 The Council has four corporate priorities which are: 

 Sustainable; 

 Healthy, safe and secure; 

 Connected; and 

 Creative 

4.2 This report meets the Sustainable corporate priority 

5 Consultation 

5.1 There has been no consultation with Ward Councillors or Portfolio Holders. 

6 Implications 

6.1 Financial and Resources 

6.1.1 Any decision to reduce or increase resources or alternatively increase income must be 
made within the context of the Council’s stated priorities, as set out in its Council Plan 
2019 to 2023, as agreed at Council on 7 November 2019. 

6.2 Legal 

6.2.1 There are no Legal implications arising from the recommendation in this report. 

6.3 Human Resources 

6.3.1 There are no Human Resources implications arising from the recommendation in this 
report. 

Page  5

Agenda Item 4



 

2 

6.4 Statutory Considerations 

Consideration: Details of any implications and 
proposed measures to address: 

Equality and Diversity There are no implications 

Health, Social Environmental and Economic 
Impact 

There are no implications 

Crime and Disorder There are no implications 

Children and Safeguarding There are no implications 

6.5 Risk Management 

Risk Consequence Controls Required 

External Auditor comments 
and views are not made 
known to Members. 

Necessary remedial 
action is not identified 
and actioned. 

Proper consideration of the 
External Auditor’s reports is 
an important governance 
control and ensures that the 
independent views of the 
Auditor are made known to 
Members and remedial 
action is identified and 
actioned. 

7 Other Options Considered 

7.1 No other options have been considered. 

8 Reasons for the Decision/Recommendation 

8.1 To keep Members updated on the work of the External Auditor. 

Tracking Information 

Governance Check Date Considered 

Chief Finance Officer (or Deputy) 11 February 2020 

Monitoring Officer (or Deputy) 12 February 2020 

Relevant Director Not Applicable 

Background Papers: None 

Appendices: Appendix A –Audit Progress Report 

Contact Officer: Paul Sutton, Interim Chief Finance Officer 

Page  6



Audit Progress Report

Eden District Council
Year ending 31 March 2020

February 2020

Appendix A

P
age  7



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | November 2019 2

Public

Contents
Section Page
Introduction 03
Progress at February 2020 04
Audit Deliverables 05
Sector Update 06

P
age  8



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | November 2019 3

Public

This paper provides the Accounts and Governance Committee with a report 
on progress in delivering our responsibilities as your external auditors. 

Members of the Accounts and Governance Committee can find further useful material on our website, where we have 
a section dedicated to our work in the public sector. Here you can download copies of our publications 
www.grantthornton.co.uk.

If you would like further information on any items in this briefing, or would like to register with Grant Thornton to 
receive regular email updates on issues that are of interest to you, please contact either your Engagement Lead or 
Engagement Manager./

Introduction

Gareth Kelly

Engagement Lead

T 0141 223 0891
E Gareth.kelly@uk.gt.com

Jamie Wright

Engagement Manager

T 0141 223 0603
E Jamie.sb.wright@uk.gt.com

P
age  9

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/


© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | November 2019 4

Public

Progress at November 2019

Financial Statements Audit
We issued our opinion on your 2018/19 Statement of 
Accounts on 29 July 2019. 

We will begin our planning for the 2019/20 audit in 
January and will issue a detailed audit plan, setting 
out our proposed approach to the audit of the 
Council's 2018/19 financial statements.

We will begin our interim audit in February 2020. Our 
interim fieldwork includes:

• Updated review of the Council’s control 
environment

• Updated understanding of financial systems

• Review of Internal Audit reports on core financial 
systems

• Early work on emerging accounting issues

• Early substantive testing

We will report our work in the Audit Findings Report. 
We will provide you with an update as to when we 
plan to give our opinion on the Statement of 
Accounts.

Value for Money
The scope of our work is set out in the guidance 
issued by the National Audit Office. The Code 
requires auditors to satisfy themselves that; "the 
Council has made proper arrangements for 
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in 
its use of resources".

The guidance confirmed the overall criterion as: "in 
all significant respects, the audited body had proper 
arrangements to ensure it took properly informed 
decisions and deployed resources to achieve 
planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers 
and local people".

The three sub criteria for assessment to be able to 
give a conclusion overall are:

•Informed decision making

•Sustainable resource deployment

•Working with partners and other third parties.

Details of our initial risk assessment to determine 
our approach will be  included in our Audit Plan. 

We will report our work in the Audit Findings 
Report. We will provide you with an update as to 
when we plan to give our Value for Money 
Conclusion.

Other areas
Meetings
We will be meeting with Finance Officers in November 
as part of our regular liaison meetings and continue to 
be in discussions with finance staff regarding emerging 
developments and to ensure the audit process is 
smooth and effective. We also met with your Chief 
Executive in October to discuss the Council’s strategic 
priorities and plans.

Events
We provide a range of workshops, along with network 
events for members and publications to support the 
Council. Your officers will be invited to our Financial 
Reporting Workshop in January/February 2020, which 
will help to ensure that members of your Finance 
Team are up to date with the latest financial reporting 
requirements for Local Authority accounts.

Further details of the publications that may be of 
interest to the Council are set out in our Sector Update 
section of this report.

P
age  10



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | November 2019 5

Public

Audit Deliverables
2019/20 Deliverables Planned Date Status
Fee Letter 
Confirming audit fee for 2018/19.

April 2019 Complete

Accounts Audit Plan
We are required to issue a detailed accounts audit plan to the Accounts and Governance Committee setting out 
our proposed approach in order to give an opinion on the Council’s 2019-20 financial statements.

April 2020 Not yet due

Interim Audit Findings
We will report to you the findings from our interim audit and our initial value for money risk assessment within 
our Progress Report.

April 2020 Not yet due

Audit Findings Report
The Audit Findings Report will be reported to the July Accounts and Governance Committee.

TBC Not yet due

Auditors Report
This is the opinion on your financial statement, annual governance statement and value for money conclusion.

TBC Not yet due

Annual Audit Letter
This letter communicates the key issues arising from our work.

TBC Not yet due

P
age  11



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | November 2019 6

Public

Councils continue to try to achieve greater 
efficiency in the delivery of public services, whilst 
facing the challenges to address rising demand, 
ongoing budget pressures and social inequality.

Our sector update provides you with an up to date summary of emerging 
national issues and developments to support you. We cover areas which 
may have an impact on your organisation, the wider local government 
sector and the public sector as a whole. Links are provided to the detailed 
report/briefing to allow you to delve further and find out more. 

Our public sector team at Grant Thornton also undertake research on 
service and technical issues. We will bring you the latest research 
publications in this update. We also include areas of potential interest to 
start conversations within the organisation and with audit committee 
members, as well as any accounting and regulatory updates. 

Sector Update

More information can be found on our dedicated public sector and local 
government sections on the Grant Thornton website by clicking on the logos 
below:

• Grant Thornton Publications
• Insights from local  government sector 

specialists
• Reports of interest
• Accounting and regulatory updates

Public Sector Local 
government

P
age  12

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/industries/public-sector/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/industries/public-sector/local-government/


© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | November 2019 7

Public

MHCLG – Independent probe into local 
government audit 

In July, the then Communities secretary, James Brokenshire, 
announced the government is to examine local authority 
financial reporting and auditing.
At the CIPFA conference he told delegates the independent review will be headed up by Sir 
Tony Redmond, a former CIPFA president.

The government was “working towards improving its approach to local government oversight 
and support”, Brokenshire promised.

“A robust local audit system is absolutely pivotal to work on oversight, not just because it 
reinforces confidence in financial reporting but because it reinforces service delivery and, 
ultimately, our faith in local democracy,” he said.

“There are potentially far-reaching consequences when audits aren’t carried out properly and
fail to detect significant problems.”

The review will look at the quality of local authority audits and whether they are highlighting 
when an organisation is in financial trouble early enough.

It will also look at whether the public has lost faith in auditors and whether the current audit 
arrangements for councils are still “fit for purpose”.

On the appointment of Redmond, CIPFA chief executive Rob Whiteman said: “Tony 
Redmond is uniquely placed to lead this vital review, which will be critical for determining 
future regulatory requirements.

“Local audit is crucial in providing assurance and accountability to the public, while helping to
prevent financial and governance failure.”

He added: “This work will allow us to identify what is needed to make local audit as robust as 
possible, and how the audit function can meet the assurance needs, both now and in the 
future, of the sector as a whole.”

 

 

In the question and answer session following his speech, Brokenshire said he was not 
looking to bring back the Audit Commission, which appointed auditors to local bodies and 
was abolished in 2015. MHCLG note that auditing of local authorities was then taken over by 
the private, voluntary and not-for-profit sectors.

He explained he was “open minded”, but believed the Audit Commission was “of its time”.

Local authorities in England are responsible for 22% of total UK public sector expenditure so 
their accounts “must be of the highest level of transparency and quality”, the Ministry of 
Housing, Local Government and Communities said. The review will also look at how local 
authorities publish their annual accounts and if the financial reporting system is robust 
enough.

Redmond, who has also been a local authority treasurer and chief executive, is expected to 
report to the communities secretary with his initial recommendations in December 2019, with 
a final report published in March 2020. Redmond has also worked as a local government 
boundary commissioner and held the post of local government ombudsman.

The terms of reference focus on whether there is an “expectation gap” between the purpose 
of external audit and what it is currently delivering. It will examine the performance of local 
authority audit, judged according to the criteria of economy, effectiveness and efficiency.

Other key areas of the review include whether:

1) audit recommendations are effective in helping councils to improve financial 
management

2) auditors are using their reporting powers appropriately

3) councils are responding to auditors appropriately

4) Financial savings from local audit reforms have been realised

5) There has been an increase in audit providers

6) Auditors are properly responding to questions or objections by local taxpayers

7) Council accounts report financial performance in a way that is transparent and open to 
local press scrutiny.

P
age  13



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | November 2019 8

Public

Financial Reporting Council – Summary of key 
developments for 2019/20 annual reports
On 30 October the Financial Reporting Council (FRC) wrote 
an Open Letter to Company Audit Committee Chairs. Some 
of the points are relevant to local authorities.
The reporting environment

The FRC notes that, “In times of uncertainty, whether created by political events, general 
economic conditions or operational challenges, investors look for greater transparency in 
corporate reports to inform their decision-making. We expect companies to consider carefully
the detail provided in those areas of their reports which are exposed to heightened levels of 
risk; for example, descriptions of how they have approached going concern considerations, 
the impact of Brexit and all areas of material estimation uncertainty.” These issues equally 
affect local authorities, and the Statement of Accounts or Annual Report should provide 
readers with sufficient appropriate information on these topics.

Critical judgements and estimates

The FRC wrote “More companies this year made a clear distinction between the critical 
judgements they make in preparing their accounts from those that involve the making of 
estimates and which lead to different disclosure requirements. However, some provided 
insufficient disclosures to explain this area of their reporting where a particular judgement 
had significant impact on their reporting; for example, whether a specific investment was a 
joint venture or a subsidiary requiring consolidation. We will continue to have a key focus on 
the adequacy of disclosures supporting transparent reporting of estimation uncertainties. An 
understanding of their sensitivity to changing assumptions is of critical value to investors, 
giving them clearer insight into the possible future changes in balance sheet values and 
which can inform their investment decisions.” Critical judgements and estimates also form a 
crucial part of local authority statements of account, with the distinction often blurred.

 

IFRS 16 Leases

The FRC letter notes “IFRS 16 is effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. 
We recently conducted a thematic review looking at how companies reported on their 
adoption of the new standard in their June 2019 interim accounts. In advance of our detailed 
findings which will be published shortly, I set out what we expect to see by way of 
disclosures in the forthcoming accounts, drawing on the results of our work.

• Clear explanation of the key judgements made in response to the new reporting 
requirements;

• Effective communication of the impact on profit and loss, addressing any lack of 
comparability with the prior year;

• Clear identification of practical expedients used on transition and accounting policy choices; 
and

• Well explained reconciliation, where necessary, of operating lease commitments under IAS 
17, ‘Leases’, the previous standard and lease liabilities under IFRS 16.”

The implementation of IFRS is delayed until 1 April 2020 in the public sector when it will 
replace IAS 17 Leases and the three interpretations that supported its application. 
Authorities will need information and processes in place to enable them to comply with the 
requirements. They will need to make disclosures in the 2019/20 accounts about the impact 
of IFRS 16 in accordance with IAS 8/ Code 3.3.4.3 requirements for disclosure about 
standards which are issued but are not yet effective.

Financial Reporting
Challenge question: 

Will you have the opportunity to review and comment on your 
authority’s statement of accounts before they are published at the 
end of May?

P
age  14



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | November 2019 9

Public

What is the future for local audit?
Paul Dossett, Head of local government at Grant Thornton, 
has written in the Municipal Journal “Audit has been a hot 
topic of debate this year and local audit is no exception. With 
a review into the quality of local audit now ongoing, it’s critical 
that part of this work looks at the overarching governance and 
management of the audit regime. We believe there is a strong 
need for new oversight arrangements if the local audit regime 
is to remain sustainable and effective in the future.”
Paul goes on to write “Local (local authority and NHS) audit has been a key part of the 
oversight regime for public services for more than a century. The National Audit Office (NAO) 
has exercised this role in central government for several generations and their reporting to 
Parliament via the Public Accounts Committee is a key part of the public spending 
accountability framework.

Local audit got a significant boost with the creation of the Audit Commission in 1983 which 
provided a coordinated, high profile focus on local government and (from 1990) NHS 
spending and performance at a local level. Through undertaking value for money reviews 
and maintaining a tight focus on the generational governance challenges, such as rate 
capping in the 1980s and service governance failings in the 1990s, the Commission provided 
a robust market management function for the local audit regime. Local audit fees, 
appointments, scope, quality and relevant support for auditors all fell within their ambit.

However, the Commission was ultimately deemed, among other things, to be too expensive 
and was abolished in 2010, as part of the Coalition Government’s austerity saving plans. 
While the regime was not perfect, and the sector had acknowledged that reform of the 
Commission was needed, complete abolition was not the answer.

Since then, there has been no body with complete oversight of the local audit regime and 
how it interacts with local public services. The Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local 
Government; Department of Health; NHS; NAO; Local Government Association (LGA); 
Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA); the Financial Reporting Council (FRC); the 
Chartered Institute of Public Finance & Accountancy (CIPFA), audit firms and the audited 
bodies themselves all have an important role to play but, sometimes, the pursuit of individual 
organisational objectives has resulted in sub-optimal and even conflicting outcomes for the 
regime overall.

These various bodies have pursued separate objectives in areas such as audit fee reduction, 
scope of work, compliance with commercial practice, earlier reporting deadlines and 
mirroring commercial accounting conventions – to name just a few.

This has resulted in a regime that no stakeholder is wholly satisfied with and one that does 
not ensure local audit is providing a sufficiently robust and holistic oversight of public 
spending.

To help provide a more cohesive and co-ordinated approach within the sector, we believe 
that new oversight arrangements should be introduced. These would have ultimate 
responsibility for ensuring the sustainability of the local audit regime and that its component 
parts – including the Audit Code, regulation, market management and fees – interact in an 
optimal way. While these arrangements do not need to be another Audit Commission, we 
need to have a strategic approach to addressing the financial sustainability challenges facing 
local government and the NHS, the benchmarking of performance and the investigation of 
governance failings.

There are a number of possible solutions including:

1) The creation of a new arm’s length agency with a specific remit for overseeing and 
joining up local audit. It would provide a framework to ensure the sustainability of the 
regime, covering fees, appointments, and audit quality. The body would also help to 
create a consistent voice to government and relevant public sector stakeholders on key 
issues arising from the regime. Such a body would need its own governance structure 
drawn from the public sector and wider business community.

2) Extending the current remit of the NAO. Give it total oversight of the local audit regime 
and, in effect, establish a local audit version of the NAO, with all the attendant powers 
exercised in respect of local audit. In this context, there would be a need to create 
appropriate governance for the various sectors, similar to the Public Accounts 
Committee.

While the detail of the new arrangements would be up for debate, it’s clear that a new type of 
oversight body, with ultimate responsibility for the key elements of local audit, is needed. It 
would help to provide much-needed cohesion across the sector and between its core 
stakeholders.

The online article is available here:

https://www.themj.co.uk/What-is-the-future-for-audit/214769P
age  15

https://www.themj.co.uk/What-is-the-future-for-audit/214769


© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | November 2019 10

Public

Grant Thornton’s Sustainable Growth Index 
Report
Grant Thornton has launched the Sustainable Growth Index 
(formerly the Vibrant Economy Index) – now in its third year.  
The Sustainable Growth Index seeks to define and measure 
the components that create successful places. Our aim in 
establishing the Index was to create a tool to help frame 
future discussions between all interested parties, stimulate 
action and drive change locally. We have undergone a 
process of updating the data for English Local Authorities on 
our online, interactive tool, and have produced an updated 
report on what the data means.  All information is available 
our on our online hub, where you can read the new report and 
our regional analyses. 
The Sustainable Growth Index provides an independent, data-led scorecard for each local 
area that provides:

• businesses with a framework to understand their local economy and the issues that will 
affect investment decisions both within the business and externally, a tool to support their 
work with local enterprise partnerships, as well as help inform their strategic purpose and 
CSR plans in light of their impact on the local social and economic environment

• policy-makers and place-shapers with an overview of the strengths, opportunities and 
challenges of individual places as well as the dynamic between different areas

• Citizens with an accessible insight into how their place is doing, so that they can contribute 
to shaping local discussions about what is important to them.

The Index shows the 'tip of the iceberg' of data sets and analysis our public services 
advisory team can provide our private sector clients who are considering future locations in 
the UK, or wanting to understand the external drivers behind why some locations perform 
better than others. 

Our study looks at over 50 indicators to evaluate all the facets of a place and where they 
excel or need to improve.

Our index is divided into six baskets. These are:

1 Prosperity

2 Dynamism and opportunity

3 Inclusion and equality

4 Health, wellbeing and happiness

5 Resilience and sustainability

6 Community trust and belonging.

This year’s index confirms that cities have a consistent
imbalance between high scores related to prosperity, 
dynamism and opportunity, and low scores for health, 
wellbeing, happiness inclusion and equality. Disparity 
between the richest and poorest in these areas 
represents a considerable challenge for those places.

Inclusion and equality remains a challenge for both highly urban and highly rural places and 
coastal areas, particularly along the east coast from the North East to Essex and Kent, face 
the most significant challenges in relation to these measures and generally rank below 
average.

Creating sustainable growth matters and to achieve this national policy makers and local 
authorities need to do seven things:

1 Ensure that decisions are made on the basis of robust local evidence.

2 Focus on the transformational trends as well as the local enablers

3 Align investment decisions to support the creation of sustainable growth

4 Align new funding to support the creation of sustainable growth

5 Provide space for innovation and new approaches

6 Focus on place over organisation

7 Take a longer-term view.

The online report is available here:

https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/sustainable-growth-index-how-does-your-place-
score/

P
age  16

https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/sustainable-growth-index-how-does-your-place-score/


© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | November 2019 11

Public

Institute for Fiscal Studies – English local 
government funding: trends and challenges in 
2019 and beyond
The Institute for Fiscal Studies (IFS) has found “The 2010s 
have been a decade of major financial change for English 
local government. Not only have funding levels – and hence 
what councils can spend on local services – fallen 
significantly; major reforms to the funding system have seen 
an increasing emphasis on using funding to provide financial 
incentives for development via initiatives such as the 
Business Rates Retention Scheme (BRRS) and the New 
Homes Bonus (NHB).”
The IFS goes on to report “Looking ahead, increases in council tax and additional grant 
funding from central government mean a boost to funding next year – but what about the 
longer term, especially given plans for further changes to the funding system, including an 
expansion of the BRRS in 2021–22?

This report, the first of what we hope will be an annual series of reports providing an up-to-
date analysis of local government, does three things in this context. First, it looks in detail at 
councils’ revenues and spending, focusing on the trends and choices taken over the last 
decade. Second, it looks at the outlook for local government funding both in the short and 
longer term. And third, it looks at the impact of the BRRS and NHB on different councils’ 
funding so far, to see whether there are lessons to guide reforms to these policies.

The report focuses on those revenue sources and spending areas over which county, district 
and single-tier councils exercise real control. We therefore exclude spending on police, fire 
and rescue, national park and education services and the revenues specifically for these 
services. When looking at trends over time, we also exclude spending on and revenues 
specifically for public health, and make some adjustments to social care spending to make 
figures more comparable across years. Public health was only devolved to councils in 2013–
14, and the way social care spending is organised has also changed, with councils receiving 
a growing pot of money from the NHS to help fund services.”

The IFS reports a number of key facts and figures, including:

1) Cuts to funding from central government have led to a 17% fall in councils’ spending on 
local public services since 2009–10 – equal to 23% or nearly £300 per person.

2) Local government has become increasingly reliant on local taxes for revenues.

3) Councils’ spending is increasingly focused on social care services – now 57% of all 
service budgets.

The IFS report is available on their website below:

https://www.ifs.org.uk/publications/14563

P
age  17

https://www.ifs.org.uk/publications/14563


grantthornton.co.uk

© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only.

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member firms, 
as the context requires. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL).GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each 
member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not 
obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. This proposal is made by Grant Thornton UK LLP and is in all respects subject to the negotiation, agreement 
and signing of a specific contract/letter of engagement. The client names quoted within this proposal are disclosed on a confidential basis. All information in this proposal is released strictly 
for the purpose of this process and must not be disclosed to any other parties without express consent from Grant Thornton UK LLP. 

P
age  18



 

1 

Report No: F11/20 

Eden District Council 

Accounts and Governance Committee 

20 February 2020 

Internal Audit: Completed Reports and Progress against Annual Plan 

Portfolio: None 

Report from: Director of Corporate Services 

Wards: All Wards 

OPEN PUBLIC ITEM 

1 Purpose 

1.1 To advise Members of findings and recommendations of reports that have recently 
been completed by the Council’s Internal Audit Service and to update members on  
progress against the agreed Annual Plan for 2019/20. 

2 Recommendation 

 To note the contents of the report. 

3 Report Details 

3.1 The Council operates an internal audit service in line with The Accounts and Audit 
(England) Regulations 2015.  As part of this, Accounts and Governance Committee 
approve an annual programme of work for internal audit to complete. The results of 
these audits provide evidence of the effectiveness of internal control at the Council. 

3.2 This report covers progress to date against the 2019/20 internal audit plan. The 
2019/20 audit plan was approved by Accounts and Governance Committee on 21 
February 2019 and can be found at Appendix A for reference. 

3.3 Audits Completed 

3.3.1 No audit reports have been finalised since the last reports to the meeting of the 
Accounts and Governance Committee.  See Appendix B for Definition of Assurance 
Levels and Recommendation Priorities 

3.3.2 There are no reports from TIAA Limited.  All planned audits have commenced and will 
be reported at subsequent meetings. 

3.3.3 There have been no new or rejected priority 1 or 2 recommendations. 

4 Policy Framework 

4.1 The Council has four corporate priorities which are: 

 Sustainable; 

 Healthy, safe and secure; 

 Connected; and 

 Creative 

4.2 This report meets the Sustainable corporate priority. 

4.3 Implementation of the recommendations arising from internal audit reports will aid the 
achievement of all of the Council’s priorities and objectives and are a central element 
in ensuring good governance. 

Page  19

Agenda Item 5



 

2 

5 Consultation 

5.1 There has been no consultation with Councillors. 

6 Implications 

6.1 Financial and Resources 

6.1.1 Any decision to reduce or increase resources or alternatively increase income must be 
made within the context of the Council’s stated priorities, as set out in its Council Plan 
2019-2023, as agreed at Council on 7 November 2019. There are no findings that 
directly impact on use of resources 

6.1.2 No such proposals are made in this report. 

6.2 Legal 

6.2.1 The Council operates an Internal Audit function in line with requirements of the 
Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015. There are no direct legal implications arising 
from this report. 

6.3 Human Resources 

6.3.1 There are no Human Resources implications. 

6.4 Statutory Considerations 

Consideration: Details of any implications and 
proposed measures to address: 

Equality and Diversity There are no implications 

Health, Social Environmental and Economic Impact There are no implications 

Crime and Disorder There are no implications 

Children and Safeguarding There are no implications 

6.5 Risk Management 

Risk Consequence Controls Required 

Issues raised by Internal Audit 
are not appropriately actioned 
by management. 

Weak systems control, 
increased risk of theft and 
fraud. 

Reporting of internal 
audit recommendations 
publicly to Committee 
and tracking 
implementation of these. 

Audit programme slipping. Approved programme not 
delivered, resources not 
directed as planned and 
reported. 

Regular reporting on 
internal audit progress. 

7 Other Options Considered 

7.1 None. 

8 Reasons for the Decision/Recommendation 

8.1 The summary reports for the completed audits and progress against the agreed Plan 
are set out for Members’ review. 

  

Page  20



 

3 

Tracking Information 

Governance Check Date Considered 

Chief Finance Officer (or Deputy) 11 February 2020 

Monitoring Officer (or Deputy) 12 February 2020 

Relevant Director Not Applicable 

Background Papers: Agreed Internal Audit Plan 2019/20 

Appendices: Appendix A: Progress against the 2019/20 Internal Audit Plan 

  Appendix B: Audit Recommendation Priorities and Follow-up Protocol 

Contact Officer: Paul Sutton, Interim Chief Finance Officer 

  

Page  21



 

4 

INTENTIONALLY BLANK  

Page  22



 

5 

Appendix A 

Progress against the 2019/20 Internal Audit Plan 

TIAA Limited are shaded grey 

Audit 2019/20 Cycle     Days Completed Balance 

Total Audit Time  Internal Audit TIAA Total to 31st Jan 2020 Remaining 

Available Audit Days  130 80 210   

Fundamental Systems Review      

 Payroll Annual 23  23 14 9 

 Creditors / Ordering Annual 18  18 8 10 

 Income Collection Annual 16  16 11 5 

 Sundry Debtors Annual 14  14 6 8 

 Main Accounting System Annual 21  21 12 9 

 Treasury Management / Investments Annual 8  8 5 3 

 Fundamental Systems Consultancy Annual 30  30 29 1 

 Council Tax Annual  10 10  10 

 Business Rates Annual  10 10  10 

 Benefits Annual  20 20  20 

Other Services/Systems       

 Housing and Homelessness   10 10  10 

 Car Parking   10 10  10 

 Emergency Planning   10 10  10 

 Land and Property Management   10 10  10 

Total   130 80 210 71 139 

  

Page  23



 

6 

INTENTIONALLY BLANK  

Page  24



 

7 

Appendix B 

Audit Recommendation Priorities and Follow-up Protocol 

Priority Definition Follow Up 

Priority 1 The recommendation addresses 
a serious control weakness which 
if not corrected is highly likely to 
result in a failure to meet the 
relevant system objective and it 
is considered there is a high risk 
of loss, error, fraud or 
reputational damage 

Follow-up will be performed by a 
specific date agreed with senior 
management. 

Priority 2 The recommendation addresses 
a weakness in control procedures 
which could result in failure to 
meet the stated system objective 
and / or may result in loss, fraud, 
error or reputational damage  

Follow-up will be performed within 6 
months. 

Priority 3 A recommendation which is 
concerned with improving 
operational procedures or 
efficiency but does not 
necessarily relate to an identified 
control weakness and is unlikely 
to result in additional risk if not 
actioned 

Follow-up will be undertaken as part 
of the next audit or within a year 
(whichever is sooner). 

PROCEDURAL NOTE – FUNDAMENTAL SYSTEMS PERIODIC AUDIT WORK 

Work in relation to this audit was undertaken on a planned basis over the financial year with 
‘key controls’ being tested on a number of occasions throughout the year and other controls 
tested at an agreed time within the year. This ensures that key controls and transactions 
relating to this ‘fundamental’ system are tested over a period of at least 9 months and that 
there is an ongoing audit review of the operation of the system and associated controls. 

Any recommendations arising as a result of this work are reported to management on a 
cyclical basis as part of the ‘Periodic Audit Work’ reports to the Accounts & Governance 
Committee. This ensures any control weaknesses are promptly addressed and acted on. Any 
such recommendations are also included in this report and identified accordingly. 

Page  25



 

8 

Definition of Assurance Levels and Recommendation Priorities 

Assurance 
Level 

Definition Basis of Opinion 

Substantial There is a sound system of 
internal control in place which 
adequately supports the 
achievement of system objectives 
and minimises risk. 

Audit testing indicates that controls 
are consistently and effectively 
applied and no weaknesses were 
identified. However, as audit work is 
primarily sample-based, ‘complete’ 
assurance cannot be given. 

Reasonable There is a reasonable system of 
internal control which should 
ensure that system objectives are 
generally achieved but some 
weaknesses have been identified 
which may result in errors or 
performance issues in certain 
areas. 

Testing has identified that whilst 
there is generally a good system of 
internal control, there are some 
areas where controls could be 
improved, or are not always 
effectively applied.  Consequently, 
a small number of errors may also 
have been identified. 

Partial Although some areas may be 
satisfactory, an unacceptable 
number of weaknesses have 
been identified across the control 
system, which means there is a 
high risk of failure of meeting all 
objectives and there is the 
possibility of loss, damage to 
reputation, or fraud, in some 
areas. 

The results of the audit work 
indicate that an unsatisfactory level 
or range of internal controls are in 
place, or that controls are not being 
operated effectively and 
consistently. This is likely to be 
evidenced by a significant level of 
error being identified by audit 
testing. 

Minimal The overall system of control is 
weak and the system is 
vulnerable and open to error and 
abuse.  There is a high risk of 
system objectives not being 
achieved and / or the 
achievement of objectives cannot 
be substantiated. 

Significant non-compliance, or a 
lack of adequate controls was 
identified, leaving the system 
vulnerable to error and abuse.  
Control arrangements are of a 
generally poor standard.  High 
numbers and / or values of errors 
have been identified. 

 

Page  26



 

 1 

Report No: F10/20 

Eden District Council 

Accounts and Governance Committee  

20 February 2020 

Internal Audit Annual Plan 2020-2021 

Portfolio: None 

Report from: Director of Finance 

Wards: All Wards 

OPEN PUBLIC ITEM 

1 Purpose 

1.1 To seek approval for the Council’s Internal Audit Annual Plan for 2020-2021.  Under the 
Council’s Constitution, approval of the Audit Plan rests with this Committee. 

2 Recommendation 

 That the Audit Plan for 2020-2021, attached at Appendix A, is agreed. 

3 Report Details 

3.1 Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 

3.1.1 Proper internal audit practices are those set out in the Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards (PSIAS).  In drawing up the Plan for 2020-2021, paragraphs 3.3 to 3.8 of the 
PSIAS application note have been referred to. 

3.2 Scope of Work 

3.2.1 Due to the limited resources of the internal audit service, internal audit work focuses 
mainly on the audit of systems fundamental to the financial accounts, and high risk 
areas. 

3.2.2 The Fundamental Systems audits help to evidence that the information that feeds into 
the Council’s accounts from the core financial systems is complete and accurate.  As 
such the audits give the Chief Finance Officer (s151) the assurance required as the 
officer charged with ensuring proper financial administration.  They also inform the 
Annual Governance Statement and the Council’s anti-fraud arrangements. 

3.2.3 The audit of the shared IT Service is carried out under South Lakeland District Council's 
Internal Audit Plan.  This is because South Lakeland District Council is the lead authority 
as employer of the staff in the shared service. 

3.3 Audit Objectives and Activities 

3.3.1 The key objective of the Plan is to ensure that the Council has an ongoing verification 
process that can confirm that it has a sound system of internal control.  The areas of 
audit are set out in the appended Plan.  The starting point for each audit will be to identify 
the current system.  The system will be tested to ensure it is operating as intended.  In 
particular, the Fundamental Systems will be documented, before testing, in compliance 
with International Auditing Standards. 

  

Page  27

Agenda Item 6



 

 2 

3.3.2 The focus of each audit will mainly be on the internal controls of the various services 
provided by the Council, but in accordance with current best practice, consideration is 
also given to 'best value' aspects of each service and the priorities and strategic actions 
included in the Council’s Corporate Plan. 

3.4 Risk Assessment 

3.4.1 A key element of the Council’s Accounts and Audit Rules is formal confirmation from 
internal audit that internal controls are adequate.  Internal audit is, therefore, considered 
a significant part of corporate control arrangements. 

3.4.2 Each programme of audit work takes a risk-based approach, based on appropriate audit 
standards. 

3.5 Resourcing of an Internal Audit Service 

3.5.1 The Council’s audit service is provided partly by the in-house Senior Auditor (the internal 
provider) and partly by bought-in services.  From April 2016, the latter has been provided 
by TIAA Limited.  The audits to be covered by the external provider are identified in 
Appendix A by shading. 

3.5.2 The Plan begins by setting out the total number of days available for audit.  After allowing 
for overheads and corporate functions (such as fraud), 210 days are available for audit.  
130 are from the in-house auditor and 80 from the bought-in contractor. 

3.6 Determining the Audit Plan 

3.6.1 It is proposed to continue with the current approach for the Fundamental Systems.  A 
number of other councils have moved these audits on to a cyclical basis so, for example, 
undertaking payroll every three years, or undertaking an audit each year but only 
covering certain aspects so that the whole system is covered on a three year cycle.  This 
approach obviously frees up time to audit other areas.  However, Fundamental Systems 
audits give considerable assurance that the Council’s financial administration is 
operating in an effective way with the proper controls in place.  In addition, the Annual 
Governance Statement includes the annual review of Fundamental Systems as one of 
the Council’s governance controls. 

3.6.2 There would then be 108 days available for other audit areas as follows: 

 Total Days Senior Auditor Days Bought-In Days 

Days Available 242 162 80 

Less: Fundamental Systems Audits* -134 -104 -30 

Available Days 108 58 50 

3.6.3 Fundamental Systems audits undertaken by the Senior Auditor are: 

 Payroll / Agency Expenses 

 Creditors / Ordering / Procurement; 

 Income Collection and associated IT systems; 

 Sundry Debtors; 

 Main Accounting System; and 

 Treasury Management / Investments. 

3.6.4 Fundamental Systems audits undertaken which are bought-in are: 

 Council Tax; 

 Business Rates; and 

 Benefits. 

3.6.5 The allocation of 134 days is based on previous experience. 

  

Page  28



 

 3 

3.7 Consultancy / Governance System Reviews 

3.7.1 The current Plan allocates the balance of the Senior Auditors time to work 

 Oversee National Fraud Initiatives 

 A contingency for 15 days for responsive and unplanned works 

 20 days to review risk registers and the management of risk 

 16 days to review external contractor payment processes prior to re-procurement 
commencing. 

3.7.2 Based on this allocation there is a balance of 50 days (all from the TIAA Limited) to 
allocate to other audit areas. 

3.8 Allocating Available Audit Days 

3.8.1 The Head of Internal has consulted the Senior Internal Auditor, TIAA Ltd and 
Management Team to develop a proposal of services for internal audit review. This is 
based on: 

 Their view of risk; and 

 Judgement as to the ‘added value’ of audit. 

Factors impacting on the selection include time since the last review and significant 
changes to policies or regulations. Five audits were selected as follows: 

 A review of the larger capital programmes to ascertain appropriate approvals, 
financial controls and outcomes are delivered. This will factor in procurement 
processes and a Value for Money assessment against programme objectives 

 A review of Cemetery Income and Contractor charges. This is a significant element of 
income that needs to ensure correlation to the fees and charges schedule and other 
records 

 Legal case management including Land Charges to again ensure appropriate fees 
and charges are being utilised and any costs that can be recovered are recorded and 
invoiced 

 A review of the Council’s IT Cyber and Fraud processes to ensure adequate controls 
are in place to protect the Authority’s Information Databases 

 Following on from the current property management review, a full Landlord 
Compliance test will take place again to ensure our tenants are protected and 
mitigate risk to the authority. 

4 Policy Framework 

4.1 The Council has four corporate priorities which are: 

 Sustainable; 

 Healthy, safe and secure; 

 Connected; and 

 Creative 

4.2 This report meets the Sustainable corporate priority. 

4.3 The Plan does not form part of the Budgetary and Policy Framework.  However, the audit 
work set out in it does cover many aspects of the Framework.  It therefore has an 
important role in ensuring the Framework operates effectively. The audit work is also 
aligned to the Council’s Quality Council corporate priority  

Page  29



 

 4 

5 Consultation 

5.2 The draft Plan has been consulted upon with the external auditor (Grant Thornton), TIAA 
Limited (the external provider for the Plan period) and the Senior Internal Auditor. 

6 Implications 

6.1 Financial and Resources 

6.1.1 Any decision to reduce or increase resources must be made within the context of the 
Council’s stated priorities, as set out in its Council Plan 2019-2023, as agreed at Council 
on 7 November 2019. 

6.1.2 There are no proposals in this report that would reduce or increase resources. 

6.2 Legal 

6.2.1 Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 requires every local authority to “make 
arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to ensure that one 
of the officers has responsibility for the administration of those affairs.   

6.2.2 Part 2, Paragraph 6.1 of the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2011 states, “A 
relevant body must undertake an adequate and effective internal audit of its accounting 
records and of its system of internal control in accordance with the proper practices in 
relation to internal control.” 

6.3 Human Resources 

6.3. There are no Human Resources implications. 

6.4 Statutory Considerations 

Consideration: Details of any implications and 
proposed measures to address: 

Equality and Diversity There are no implications 

Health, Social, Environmental and Economic 
Impact 

There are no implications  

Crime and Disorder The work of internal audit may 
identify instance of fraud and or 
corruption which can be referred to 
the relevant authorities for 
necessary action. 

Children and Safeguarding There are no implications 

6.5 Risk Management 

Risk Consequence Controls Required 

That services do not provide 
value for money. 

Adverse effect on the 
Council’s budget and 
reputational damage. 

The work of internal 
audit is one of the 
strands of work for 
which the Director of 
Finance is ultimately 
responsible which can 
identify such services 
and recommend 
appropriate action. 

Page  30



 

 5 

Risk Consequence Controls Required 

That instance of fraud and 
corruption are not identified  

Reputational damage and 
financial cost to the 
Council.  

The work of internal 
audit is one of the 
strands of work for 
which the Director of 
Finance is ultimately 
responsible which can 
identify such services 
and recommend 
appropriate action. 

7 Other Options Considered 

7.1 No other options have been considered. 

8 Reasons for the Decision/Recommendation 

8.1 The Internal Audit Plan for 2019-2020 sets out how the Council intends to direct its audit 
resources to ensure that there is an effective Internal Audit service. 

Tracking Information 

Governance Check Date Considered 

Chief Finance Officer (or Deputy) 11 February 2020 

Monitoring Officer (or Deputy) 12 February 2020 

Relevant Director Not Applicable 

Background Papers: Public Sector Internal Audit Standards - Application Note 

Appendices:  Appendix A - Proposed Internal Audit Plan 2020-2021 

Contact Officer:  Paul Sutton, Interim Chief Finance Officer 

 
  

Page  31



 

 6 

Appendix A 

Proposed Internal Audit Plan 2020-2021 

 

 

Planned Reviews

Financial (Fundamental) System Reviews

Main Accounting System inc Procurement support 20

Payroll / Agency / Expenses 20

Creditors / Ordering / Procurement 20

Income Collection 10

Civica upgrade implementation 10

Sundry Debtors 14

Treasury Management / Investments 10

Council Tax 10

Business Rates 10

Benefits 10

134

Consultancy Reviews

Responsive / Unplanned Work / Contingency 15

National Fraud Initiative Overview 7

22

Governance System Reviews

Risk Management / Insurance / Risk Registers 20

20

Risk-Based Audit Reviews

In-House Auditor

Lesiure Management contract payments - baseline pre procurement checks 5

Recycing / Waste contract payments - baseline pre procurement checks 5

Recycing / Waste contract management review 6

16

TIAA

Capital programme - Parish Footway and Leisure renewals programmes 10

Cemetery - Income and contract charges 10

Legal Case Management / Land Charges 10

Cyber / Fraud Arrangements 10

Property Manangement - Landlord compliance testing inc HoC 10

50

I.T Reviews

Undertaken by S.Lakes D.C (Shared Service) 0

0

Total Planned Days 242

NB: Shading indicates audits undertaken by the bought-in service

Page  32


	Agenda
	4 External Audit Reports
	External Audit Reports
	1 Purpose
	2 Recommendation
	3 Report Details
	4 Policy Framework
	5 Consultation
	6 Implications
	6.1 Financial and Resources
	6.2 Legal
	6.3 Human Resources
	6.4 Statutory Considerations
	6.5 Risk Management

	7 Other Options Considered
	8 Reasons for the Decision/Recommendation


	5 Internal Audit: Completed Reports and Progress against Annual Plan
	6 Internal Audit Annual Plan 2020-2021

